STATE OF WASHINGTON DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH OLYMPIA, WASHINGTON

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS DOH-RFP25654-0

PROJECT TITLE: Strengthening Family and Community Engagement through Early Childhood Brain-Building with Vroom (phase 2)

BID DUE DATE: no later than **3:00 PM**, **December 09, 2020** (local time, Tumwater, WA)

ESTIMATED INITIAL PERIOD FOR CONTRACT: January 15, 2021 through December 31, 2021 -

BIDDER ELIGIBILITY: This solicitation is open to organizations, Bidders/teams licensed or capable of becoming licensed to do business in the state of Washington, who are available for work, and who satisfy the minimum qualifications stated in Section 1.4.

SOLICITATION SCHEDULE:

Solicitation Release Date:	October 26, 2020
Questions Due from Bidders:	November 02, 2020
DOH Response to Questions:	November 05, 2020
Complaint/Suggestion Deadline:	November 12, 2020
Bid Due Date:	No later than 3:00 PM, December 09, 2020
Evaluation Period (approximate time frame):	December 16, 2020 through December 30, 2020
Estimated Announcement of Apparent Successful Bidder (ASB) – Announcement via email only to all bidders.	January 05, 2021
Estimated Request for Debriefing Conference Deadline:	January 08, 2021
Projected Contract Start Date (Specific date dependent on debrief conferences; as applicable)	January 15, 2020

All times shown above are Local Time in Tumwater, WA.

The DOH reserves the right to revise the above schedule. Revisions (if any) will be made via amendment and posted to **WEBS** (Washington's Electronic Business Solution).

WEBS REGISTRATION

The Department is required to post all bid opportunities on WEBS, the state's electronic vendor registration and bid notification system. If not currently registered, Bidders interested in obtaining notification of state bidding opportunities, including those for the Department, should register at:

www.des.wa.gov/services/ContractingPurchasing/Business/Pages/WEBSRegistration.aspx.

There are step by step instructions to guide you through the process. If you have difficulties, questions about the registration process may be directed to webscustomerservice@des.wa.gov or (360) 902-7400, 8:00AM to 5:00PM, Monday – Friday.

The system is self-maintained and Bidders are responsible for the accuracy of the information in WEBS for updating/maintaining registration information, and checking with their assigned account administrators regarding notifications. In order to receive notifications <u>you must select</u> <u>"yes" for Bid notifications.</u> If you do not download bid documents, you will not receive any subsequent notifications regarding this solicitation.

In order to receive notifications of this opportunity, bidders must be registered in the following WEBS commodity codes:

- 924-16: Course Development Services, Instructional/Training
- **924-18**: Educational Services Alternative
- **924-19**: Educational Research Services
- 924-71: School Operation and Management Services
- **924-80**: Tutoring

SOLICITATION COORDINATOR

The Solicitation coordinator is the sole point of contact in the DOH for this solicitation. Upon release, all communications in regard to this solicitation shall be directed, via email, to the Solicitation Coordinator or their designee as follow:

Name:	Frank Webley, Contract Specialist III – Washington State Department of Health
E-Mail Address:	Bids@doh.wa.gov

Any other communication will be considered unofficial and non-binding on the DOH. Bidders are to rely on written statements issued by the Solicitation Coordinator or their designee only.

Communication directed to parties other than the Solicitation Coordinator may result in disqualification of the Bidder.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

1.	INTR	ODUCTION	4
	1.1	BACKGROUND, PURPOSE AND OBJECTIVES	4
	1.2	SCOPE OF WORK	7
	1.3	MINIMUM AND DESIRED QUALIFICATIONS	7
	1.4	FUNDING	
	1.5	PERIOD OF PERFORMANCE	8
	1.6	DEFINITIONS	
2.	GEN	ERAL INFORMATION FOR BIDDERS	8
	2.1	QUESTION AND ANSWER PERIOD	8
	2.2	COMPLAINT PROCESS	9
	2.3	SUBMISSION OF BIDS	9
	2.4	PUBLIC DISCLOSURE PROPRIETARY/CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION	9
	2.5	REVISIONS TO THE SOLICITATION	10
	2.6	MINORITY & WOMEN-OWNED BUSINESS ENTERPRISES AND VETERAN-OWNED	WNED
		BUSINESS ENTERPRISE PARTICIPATION	10
	2.7	RESPONSIVENESS	10
	2.8	MOST FAVORABLE TERMS/BEST AND FINAL OFFER	11
	2.9	CONTRACT AND GENERAL TERMS & CONDITIONS	11
	2.10	COSTS TO PROPOSE	11
	2.11	NO OBLIGATION TO CONTRACT	11
	2.12	ACCESSIBILITY REQUIREMENTS FOR PROJECTS WITH INFORMATION	
		TECHNOLOGY	
	2.13	PROCUREMENT EVALUATION FOR EXECUTIVE ORDER 18-03 (FIRMS WITH	
		MANDATORY INDIVIDUAL ARBITRATION FOR EMPLOYEES)	
3.	BID (CONTENTS	12
	3.1	LETTER OF SUBMITTAL (MANDATORY)	12
4.	EVA	LUATION AND CONTRACT AWARD	16
	4.1	EVALUTION PROCEDURE	16
	4.2	CLARIFICATION OF BID	16
	4.3	EVALUATION WEIGHTING AND SCORING	16
	4.4	NOTIFICATION TO BIDDERS	18
	4.5	DEBRIEFING OF UNSUCCESSFUL BIDDERS	18
	4.6	PROTEST PROCEDURE	
5.	SOLI	CITATION EXHIBITS (Order and content of Exhibits may vary)	
	EXH	IBIT A – DRAFT SCOPE OF WORK	20
		IBIT B – BID CERTIFICATIONS AND ASSURANCES	
		IBIT B-1 – Contractor Certification	
		IBIT C – EXECUTIVE ORDER 18-03 – WORKERS' RIGHTS	
		IBIT D – CONTRACT GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (GT&Cs)	

1. INTRODUCTION

1.1 BACKGROUND, PURPOSE AND OBJECTIVES

Background

Essentials for Childhood seeks to expand and deepen the reach of <u>Vroom</u> brain building tools and messages across Washington State through community-driven approaches that honor and build on community strengths. This project prioritizes introducing Vroom to families and communities who are underserved and have been historically marginalized. This includes communities impacted by persistent inequities caused by racism, historical trauma, economic injustice, and cultural and linguistic barriers to participating in mainstream culture and services.

Washington State <u>Essentials for Childhood</u> (Essentials) is part of a comprehensive child abuse and neglect prevention effort across several states. The Centers for Disease Control & Prevention (CDC), Bezos Family Foundation and other funders support this effort. Essentials' partners are working to align systems, strategies, and policies to improve how families experience supports, reduce stress and increase resilience. Vroom is part of our Essentials' strategy to empower communities, support positive parenting and improve family-friendly systems connecting families to services and resources. Washington State Essentials is staffed at the state Department of Health (DOH).

<u>Vroom</u> empowers parents and caregivers¹ to play a proactive role in children's early brain development. It turns shared, everyday moments into brain building moments. Vroom takes early brain science out of the lab and puts it in the hands of caregivers and the important adults in children's lives. It shows them what they are already doing to support early brain development and encourages more of it. Vroom offer caregivers fun, easy tips that promote positive adult-child relationships, back and forth brain building interactions, and life skills promoting executive function. Vroom explains the science behind every activity so caregivers can see the big impact it can have in their children's lives.

Vroom's positive, tested tips are designed for children from birth through age 5. Content is deployed in a variety of ways, including an app, website, text message platform and printed materials. Families can use Vroom wherever they are, making it a great resource during the COVID-19 pandemic, as well as other times.

Vroom is best shared directly with families by providers and programs that families already trust. Ideally, messages at multiple touchpoints in a community reinforce that direct sharing. Some strategies for sharing Vroom are integration directly into programs that serve families, posters or decals in public places, tabling at community events, integration in parent and provider facing newsletters, and re-sharing content on social media. These are just examples – there is no end to the creative ways to introduce Vroom to families.

¹ Throughout this solicitation, "parent" and "caregiver" refer to any person who is a primary caregiver of a child. This includes foster parents, grandparents, kinship caregivers, and others with formal or informal custody arrangements.

The Bezos Family Foundation worked with leaders in neuroscience, psychology, behavioral economics, parenting and early childhood development to create Vroom. The Foundation first piloted Vroom in 2014. They continue to refine Vroom based on the latest research. For more information about Vroom and stories of how organizations have layered Vroom into their work, see the Vroom website.

Vroom is fully available in English and Spanish. Printable PDF versions of many Vroom materials are also available in Arabic, Bengali, Chinese, French, Haitian Creole, Korean, Polish, Russian, Somali, Tagalog, Urdu, Uzbek, Vietnamese and Yiddish. Materials are intended to raise awareness about the importance of brain building and the simplicity and fun of Vroom. You can use print materials as they are or integrate Vroom content and messages into your materials. To maintain scientific accuracy, do not modify Vroom messages and content without prior approval from the Bezos Family Foundation.

There has been robust Vroom promotion in King County since Vroom launched in 2014. Since then, a number of Washington organizations independently started using Vroom. The Bezos Family Foundation has been supporting Essentials to lead and coordinate Vroom promotion across Washington since 2019. Essentials funds early learning coalitions in Skagit and Pierce Counties to share Vroom through programs and partners across their communities. We also support a professional organization that is working with Yakima County pediatric practices and others to share Vroom in well-child visits and other settings. We are also promoting Vroom through partner engagement and technical assistance strategies and in Child Profile health promotion mailings. We can share further information about current efforts upon request.

The pandemic makes it more important than ever to help parents and caregivers support their children's healthy brain development and well-being. Vroom helps parents and caregivers make the most of everyday moments with their children with developmentally appropriate activities and information. It is a great resource for families at home with limited access other supports.

Purpose of Opportunity

This opportunity seeks to expand and deepen the reach of Vroom across Washington State as well as to strategically build on current and past efforts through community-driven approaches that honor and build on community strengths.

Objectives

Family, Program, Community and System Desired Outcomes

- Integration of Vroom messages and promotion of brain building activities into program and practice, and eventually, collaborative efforts across programs, sectors, and systems increases to promote brain building among families served.
- Increase support of families who were previously not served by existing parent supports, such as home visiting, parent education, and play and learn.
- Increased awareness and knowledge (by community members, parents and caregivers) of the science behind brain building activities and child development.

- Increased understanding (by community members, parents and caregivers) of the unique role and agency parents and caregivers hold to influence a child's development.
- Improved family-friendly systems connecting families to services and resources.
- Improved parent or caregiver-child relationships.
- Increased community support and connectedness for families.

Priority Communities and Populations

This project prioritizes introducing Vroom to families and communities who are underserved and have been historically marginalized. This includes communities impacted by persistent inequities caused by racism, historical trauma, economic injustice, and cultural and linguistic barriers to participating in mainstream culture and services. Organizations best suited to this effort will be reflective of and embedded in the communities you serve. You will honor and build on community strengths.

It is important to Essentials that we reach culturally and linguistically diverse communities. Vroom is fully available in English and Spanish. Printable PDF versions of many Vroom materials are also available in Arabic, Bengali, Chinese, French, Haitian Creole, Korean, Polish, Russian, Somali, Tagalog, Urdu, Uzbek, Vietnamese and Yiddish. Interested bidders who serve culturally, racially, ethnically and linguistically diverse communities are encouraged to apply.

DOH intends to award to bidders in multiple locations. If multiple bidders propose serving the same population or largely overlapping populations (same location and demographics), we will only award one contract to the highest scoring of those bidders unless you make a strong case that the proposals are coordinated and complementary. Similarly, if a bidder proposes serving a population already served through current awardees, you will not be awarded a contract unless you make a strong case that the proposals are coordinated and complementary. Current awardees share Vroom across Skagit and Pierce Counties, and through pediatric practices in Yakima County.

The <u>2017 Washington State Home Visiting Needs Assessment</u> informs our understanding of disparities that affect early child development. Based on that analysis, we have identified counties with the highest need for parenting support service. We will award extra points when scoring proposals that primarily reach families in any of these counties except Pierce and Skagit. We are not awarding extra points for Pierce and Skagit County proposals because we already have contracts with First 5 Fundamentals in Pierce County and United General in Skagit.

Highest priority counties: Asotin, Ferry, Franklin, Pierce, Snohomish, Stevens.

Second highest priority counties: Benton, Columbia, Garfield, Grays Harbor, Island, Lincoln, Mason, Okanogan, Pacific, Skagit, Wahkiakum, Whitman

Additional Helpful Resources

The Vroom website https://www.vroom.org/ describes Vroom and science behind Vroom. It highlights Vroom messages and tips and has easy directions for accessing Vroom over different platforms. The "For Professionals" tab illustrates Vroom activation in different settings. Your Vroom activation may look different from the examples described in these sources. Find can find downloadable Vroom materials and videos in the "Tools and Resources" section. (For optimal website access, do not use Internet Explorer to access the Vroom website.)

2017 Washington State Home Visiting Needs Assessment

https://www.dcyf.wa.gov/sites/default/files/pdf/OFCHI_HVNA_report.pdf, informs our understanding of disparities that affect early child development. It may help you make the case for potential impact or need in your community.

1.2 SCOPE OF WORK

The contractor will perform the work as a result of this Solicitation per the attached Exhibit A – Scope of Work, which represents the anticipated work to be done at this time. After announcement of the apparently successful bidder, negotiations for a final statement of work may result in minor changes to the activities, tasks, deliverables or due dates as described in Exhibit A.

1.3 MINIMUM AND DESIRED QUALIFICATIONS

- Bidder must be licensed or capable of becoming licensed to do business in the state of Washington prior to execution of a contract, and demonstrate achievement of the following criteria:
- Currently serve or engage Washington State families of children from prenatal (expecting parents) through age 5. **Note:** Even if early learning is not your primary focus, if you engage with families of children anywhere in the range of prenatal through age five, you may be eligible for this opportunity.
- Currently working in the community where you plan to share Vroom.
- Cultural competency to engage the population you intend to share Vroom with.

Bidders, who do not meet these qualifications may be rejected as non-responsive and will not receive further consideration. Any bid that is rejected as non-responsive will not be evaluated or scored.

Desired qualifications: Additionally, bidders who meet these qualifications may be especially well-suited to this opportunity and are encouraged to apply:

- Organizations that provide early learning, education, social, health and other services to
 populations experiencing disparities in these domains. These may include, but are not limited to
 early learning and health services providers and coalitions, parent and family education
 programs, Urban Indian Health organizations, local health jurisdictions, American
 Indian/Alaska Native Tribal governments, and/or Tribally designated organizations.
- We prefer proposals to serve a defined population within a specific geographic area within the State of Washington. Proposals that are not contained within a specific geographic location should include a clear explanation for how the unique characteristics of your population are better served this way. It should also demonstrate your ability to directly engage with this population.

1.4 FUNDING

DOH plans to award multiple contracts with funding amounts between \$20,000 and \$50,000 for a one-year period.

Any contracts awarded as a result of this solicitation are contingent upon the availability of funding.

In the event additional funding becomes available, any contract awarded may be renegotiated and amended to provide for additional related services.

1.5 PERIOD OF PERFORMANCE

The period of performance of any contract(s) resulting from this Solicitation is tentatively scheduled to begin on or about January 15, 2021 through December 31, 2021.

The DOH reserves the option at its sole discretion to extend the contract for up to two *additional one-year periods*.

1.6 DEFINITIONS

Definitions for the purposes of this Solicitation include:

Bid: A formal offer submitted in response to this solicitation.

Bidder: Individual, company, or firm submitting a bid in order

Contractor: Individual or company/companies whose bid has been accepted by the DOH and is awarded a fully executed, written contract.

DOH: The Washington State Department of Health (DOH).

Solicitation: The Request for Proposals (RFP) **DOH-RFP25654-0**. This formal solicitation document in which services needed are identified and individuals and firms are invited to provide their qualifications to provide the services and their cost associated with providing these services.

Vroom: Vroom tools and messages empower parents and caregivers² to play a proactive role in children's early brain development. It turns shared, everyday moments into brain building moments.

WEBS: Washington's Electronic Business Solution – State mandated system for posting agency competitive solicitations.

2. GENERAL INFORMATION FOR BIDDERS

2.1 QUESTION AND ANSWER PERIOD

Questions regarding Solicitation will be allowed consistent with the dates specified in the solicitation schedule on the cover page. All questions must be submitted via email to the Solicitation Coordinator.

The DOH will provide written answers for questions received by the questions and answer period's deadline. Answers will be posted to WEBS.

Verbal responses to questions will not be provided. Only written answers will be considered official and binding. Bidders will not be identified in answers.

Request for Proposals No. **DOH-RFP25654-0**

² Throughout this solicitation, "parent" and "caregiver" refer to any person who is a primary caregiver of a child. This includes foster parents, grandparents, kinship caregivers, and others with formal or informal custody arrangements.

If interpretations or other changes to this Solicitation are required as a result of inquiries made during the question and answer period, the Solicitation may be amended. Amendments are posted to WEBS.

2.2 COMPLAINT PROCESS

Issues or concerns not resolved to a Bidder's satisfaction during the question and answer period may be addressed through a complaint only on the following grounds:

- 1. The Solicitation unnecessarily restricts competition;
- 2. The evaluation or scoring process is unfair or flawed; or
- 3. The Solicitation requirements are inadequate or insufficient to prepare a response.

A Complaint must:

- 1. Be received by the DOH by the date specified in the Solicitation Schedule. Otherwise, an untimely complaint may be rejected without further consideration at the discretion of the DOH, and
- 2. Be sent by email to the solicitation Coordinator
- 3. Include the Solicitation number and be clearly labeled as "Complaint."

A complaint should:

- 1. Clearly articulate the basis of the complaint consistent with the complaint criteria; and
- 2. Include a proposed remedy.

Upon receipt of a timely complaint, the DOH will consider all the facts available and respond in writing prior to the Response due date and time.

The Solicitation Coordinator shall promptly post the response to a timely complaint on WEBS.

The DOH response to the complaint is final and not subject to appeal. Issues raised in a complaint may not be raised again during the protest period.

2.3 SUBMISSION OF BIDS

Bidders are required to submit their bid electronically in PDF format. The bid must be received by the Solicitation Coordinator as specified in the Solicitation Schedule.

Bidders assume the risk for the method of delivery chosen. The DOH assumes no responsibility for delays caused by any delivery service. Bids may not be transmitted using facsimile transmission.

Late bids will not be accepted and will be automatically disqualified from further consideration. All bids and any accompanying documentation become the property of the DOH and will not be returned.

2.4 PUBLIC DISCLOSURE PROPRIETARY/CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION

All records related to procurements under RCW 39.26 are subject to disclosure; except that bid submissions and evaluations are exempted until the apparent successful bidder (ASB) is announced. Upon announcement of the ASB, all bid submissions and evaluation information will be available via

email request at:

https://washingtondoh.govqa.us/WEBAPP/_rs/(S(1owrwucobzvgll3kpvl3k2ve))/SupportHome.aspx. Per RCW 42.56.120, DOH may charge a fee for providing records in a public disclosure request.

Any information in the bid that the Bidder desires to claim as proprietary or confidential and exempt from disclosure must be specifically referenced in your bid and included as a separate document and clearly identified as "Proprietary/Confidential Information" at the top of the document. References in your bid documents to proprietary/confidential information must clearly show which part of the "Proprietary/Confidential Information" document you are referring to (for example: "see section A of the Proprietary/Confidential Information section"). Each page of the bid containing the proprietary/confidential information must be clearly identified by the words "Proprietary/Confidential Information" on the lower right hand corner of the page. Marking the entire bid proprietary/confidential and exempt from disclosure will not be honored and the bid will be rejected as non-responsive.

2.5 REVISIONS TO THE SOLICITATION

In the event it becomes necessary to revise any part of this Solicitation, an amendment will be made available to all potential bidders at the same location as the posting of the original solicitation.

The DOH also reserves the right to cancel or to reissue the Solicitation in whole or in part, prior to execution of a contract.

2.6 MINORITY & WOMEN-OWNED BUSINESS ENTERPRISES AND VETERAN-OWNED BUSINESS ENTERPRISE PARTICIPATION

Minority and Women Owned Business Enterprises (MWBE)

In accordance with the legislative findings and policies set forth in RCW 39.19, the state of Washington encourages participation in all of its Contracts by Minority and Woman Owned Business Enterprises (MWBE) firms certified by the Office of Minority and Women's Business Enterprises (OMWBE). While the state does not give preferential treatment, it does seek equitable representation from the minority and women's business community. In addition, the state welcomes participation by self-identified minority and woman owned firms and strongly encourages such firms to become certified by OMWBE.

Participation may be either on a direct basis in Response to this Solicitation or as a subcontractor to a Contractor. However, unless required by federal statutes, regulations, grants, or Contract terms referenced in the competitive procurement solicitation, no preference will be included in the evaluation of Bids, no minimum level of MWBE participation shall be required as condition for receiving an award, and Bids will not be evaluated, rejected or considered non-responsive on that basis.

Veteran-Owned Business Enterprise

The DOH strongly encourages participation of businesses owned by veterans. No minimum level of veteran-owned business participation is required as a condition of received an AWARD and no preference will be included in the evaluation of responses in accordance with chapter 43.60A RCW.

2.7 RESPONSIVENESS

All bids will be reviewed by the Solicitation Coordinator and/or the Evaluation Team Coordinator to determine compliance with administrative requirements and instructions specified in this Solicitation.

The Bidder is specifically notified that failure to comply with any part of the Solicitation may result in rejection of the bid as non-responsive.

The DOH also reserves the right, however, at its sole discretion to waive minor administrative irregularities. Bidders will be notified whether they are initially responsive or not via email from the Solicitation Coordinator.

2.8 MOST FAVORABLE TERMS/BEST AND FINAL OFFER

The DOH reserves the right to make an award on the original bid submitted or, at its sole discretion, to request a best and final offer from the top contending bidders, as defined by the DOH. The initial bid should be submitted on the most favorable terms which the Bidder can propose. The DOH reserves the right to contact a Bidder for clarification of its bid.

The Bidder should be prepared to accept this Solicitation for incorporation into a contract resulting from this Solicitation. Contract negotiations may incorporate some or all of the Bidder's entire bid. It is understood that the bid will become a part of the official contract file on this matter without obligation to the DOH.

2.9 CONTRACT AND GENERAL TERMS & CONDITIONS

The apparent successful bidder will be expected to enter into a contract, which is substantially the same as the sample contract and its general terms and conditions attached as **Exhibit E**. In no event is a Bidder to submit its own standard contract terms and conditions in response to this solicitation. The Bidder may submit exceptions as allowed in the Certifications and Assurances section, **Exhibit B** to this solicitation. The DOH will review requested exceptions and accept or reject the same at its sole discretion.

2.10 COSTS TO PROPOSE

The DOH will not be liable for any costs incurred by the Bidder in preparation of a bid submitted in response to this Solicitation, in conduct of a presentation, or any other activities related to responding to this Solicitation.

2.11 NO OBLIGATION TO CONTRACT

This Solicitation does not obligate the state of Washington or the DOH to contract for services specified herein. The DOH reserves the right at its sole discretion to reject any and all bids received without penalty and not to issue a contract as a result of this Solicitation.

2.12 ACCESSIBILITY REQUIREMENTS FOR PROJECTS WITH INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

The State of Washington is committed to providing access to information technology to the public and Washington State employees, including individuals with disabilities. Information Technology should be procured, developed, maintained, and utilized so that it is accessible to individuals with disabilities, unless it creates an undue burden on the agency. Information Technology, including Web sites, Web-based applications, software systems, and electronically published documents, should provide the substantially similar functionality to individuals with disabilities as it provides to others.

The System must meet Accessibility Requirements of WCAG 2.0 level AA, as prescribed by Washington State OCIO Policy 188.

2.13 PROCUREMENT EVALUATION FOR EXECUTIVE ORDER 18-03 (FIRMS WITHOUT MANDATORY INDIVIDUAL ARBITRATION FOR EMPLOYEES)

Pursuant to RCW 39.26.160(3) (best value criteria) and consistent with Executive Order 18-03 – Supporting Workers' Rights to Effectively Address Workplace Violations (dated June 12, 2018), Department of Health will evaluate bids for best value and provide a bid preference in the amount of 5% to any bidder who certifies, pursuant to the certification attached as Exhibit D – Executive Order 18-03 – Workers' Rights Washington State Goods & Services Contracts Certification - that their firm does NOT require its employees, as a condition of employment, to sign or agree to mandatory individual arbitration clauses or class or collective action waiver.

3. BID CONTENTS

Bids must be submitted via email. The four major sections of the bid are to be submitted in the order noted below:

- 1. Letter of Submittal, Business Information, and signed Bid Certifications and Assurances (Exhibit B, Exhibit C and Exhibit D to this Solicitation)
- 2. Technical Proposal
- 3. Quotation

Bids must provide information in the same order as presented in this document with the same headings. This will not only be helpful to the evaluators of the bid, but should assist the Bidder in preparing a thorough response.

Items in this section marked "mandatory" must be included as part of the bid for the bid to be considered responsive, however, these items are not scored. Items marked "scored" are those that are awarded points as part of the evaluation conducted by the evaluation team.

As a reminder, information provided in bid documents is subject to public disclosure per section 2.4 of this solicitation. Do not include information in your response that you do not want disclosed to the public.

3.1 LETTER OF SUBMITTAL (MANDATORY)

The Letter of Submittal and the attached Bid Certifications and Assurances forms (Exhibits B, C and D to this Solicitation) each must be signed and dated by a person authorized to legally bind the Bidder to a contractual relationship, e.g., the president or executive director of a corporation, the managing partner of a partnership, or the proprietor of a sole proprietorship. Attach the Bid Certifications and Assurances form to the Letter of Submittal.

The Letter of Submittal must contain the following business information:

- ✓ State the name of the Bidder or company, address, phone number, email address of the primary contact, and legal status of entity (ownership).
- ✓ Provide the firm's Federal Employer Tax Identification number and the Washington Uniform Business Identification (UBI) number issued by the state of Washington Department of Revenue, or affirm that it will be provided prior to contract signing.
- ✓ Indicate how many employees are with the firm. Name the firm principles and their roles.

- ✓ If applicable, include proof of certification issued by the Washington State Office of Minority and Women's Business Enterprises if certified minority-owned firm and/or women-owned firm(s) will be participating on this project.
- ✓ Identify any state employees or former state employees employed by the Bidder or on the Bidder's governing board as of the date of the bid. Include the individual's name, the agency previously or currently employed by, job title or position held, and separation date (if applicable). If, following a review of this information, it is determined by the DOH that a conflict of interest exists, the Bidder may be disqualified from further consideration for the award of a contract.
- ✓ If the Bidder has had a contract terminated for default in the last five years, describe such incident including full details of the terms for default, including the other party's name, address, and phone number. Present the Bidder's position on the matter. Termination for default is defined as notice to stop performance due to the Bidder's non-performance or poor performance and the issue of performance was either: (a) not litigated due to inaction on the part of the Bidder, or: (b) litigated and such litigation determined that the Bidder was in default. The DOH will evaluate the facts and may, at its sole discretion, reject the bid on the grounds of the past experience. If no such termination for default has been experienced by the Bidder in the past five years, so indicate.

3.2 TECHNICAL PROPOSAL (MANDATORY)

The Technical Proposal must include the following elements: narrative, work plan and budget. Optional: Resumes or bios of key staff are recommended but not required.

Narrative (maximum 10 pages)

Your narrative must have five sections with these headings:

- 1. Applicant Information and Fit
- 2. Potential Impact/Community Need
- 3. Impact in Underserved Counties
- 4. Reach
- 5. Approach

Under each heading you should address the questions listed below for each section. Please review Exhibit A – Draft Scope of Work and keep in it mind in responding to these questions. You may organize the text within each section as you wish. Subheadings are allowed but not required. If the narrative exceeds 10 pages, we will only review and score the first 10 pages.

Each section of the narrative, the work plan and quotation will be scored separately based on the scoring criteria described in under Evaluation & Scoring below. If you submit resumes or bios of key staff, they will be factored in when scoring section 1 Applicant Information and Fit. Resumes and bios do not apply toward the 10-page limit.

1. Applicant Information and Fit 20 Points possible

- Describe the work and mission of your organization. How does Vroom activation fit into your organizational goals?
- Describe how your staff and program(s) reflect, honor and are rooted in the community.
- Describe your experience, qualifications, and success administering the programs or activities into which you will embed Vroom.
 - Recommended: Attach bios or resumes of key staff who will be involved in oversight or implementation of this project. Not included in page limit. Bios or resumes will be considered as supporting documentation of your experience and qualifications.

• Describe how you have been responsive to feedback from partners or customers in previous work?

2. Potential Impact/Community Need 15 points possible

- Describe the characteristics of the community you plan to serve or engage including demographic information and location.
- How have persistent inequities impacted this community or population? How could this community benefit from Vroom? Use data to support your response. See "Additional Resources" section of this RFP for suggested data sources or cite other data sources.
- If you do not work in a specific geographic location, provide a clear explanation for how the unique characteristics of your population are better served this way. Describe how you directly engage this population despite not being co-located with them.

3. Impact in Underserved Counties 10 points possible

- Do at least 50% of the families you expect to reach reside in any of these highest priority counties or a combination of them: Asotin, Ferry, Franklin, Snohomish, Stevens? If so, identify which county and briefly describe your reach in that county or counties.
- Do at least 50% of the families you expect to reach reside in any of these second highest priority counties or a combination of them: Benton, Columbia, Garfield, Grays Harbor, Island, Lincoln, Mason, Okanogan, Pacific, Skagit, Wahkiakum, Whitman. If so, identify which county and briefly describe your reach in that county or counties.

4. Reach

10 points possible

- Approximately how many people or families do you expect to reach? Explain your estimate.
- Do you consider this a hard to reach population? If so, explain what makes this a hard to reach population and how you will overcome those barriers.
- Do you expect to have a large reach to families who have not been served by existing parent supports? If so, explain how you know they haven't been served and how you will be able to connect with them?

5. Approach

25 points possible

- Describe your approach to embedding Vroom in your program(s) or activities addressing Exhibit A – Draft Scope of Work. How will you:
 - Embed Vroom in existing program(s) and/or activities to actively share Vroom with families via providers and programs they trust?
 - Share Vroom content and tools to enhance the systems that connect families to social, health and developmental screenings, programs and resources?
 - Build on your existing networks and reach to reinforce Vroom with supporting, layered messages and share Vroom with community partners, including business?
 This may include messages in public places, social media, and elsewhere.
 - Reflect and learn as you implement this project and adapt as needed in the face of challenges and barriers?
- How will you safely implement Vroom during the pandemic? How will you adapt your approach as the pandemic situation changes?
- How will you sustain Vroom in your organization and community after this contract ends? This may be by building Vroom into your efforts in a seamless way that does not take significant resources to maintain.

• If you or anyone else has promoted Vroom in your focus community at any time, describe how your proposal complements and builds on that effort. How will you coordinate with other Vroom promotion in your community?

6. Work plan

10 points possible

Using the following template, submit a high level work plan that outlines your main project strategies, responsible person(s), timeframe for accomplishing them, and any other important considerations to address Exhibit A – Draft Scope of Work. You may add rows to the work plan.

WORK PLAN MAY NOT EXCEED 2 PAGES.

Work plan Strategies	Person(s) primarily responsible	Timeframe for accomplishing	Notes, other considerations
1.			
2.			
3.			
4.			
5.			
6.			

List any other sub-contractors you want to include to complete your roster of services. Describe what services each would provide. Provide the information in Section 3.2 above about each.

3.3 QUOTATIONS SECTION (SCORED) 10 points possible

Bids submitted for a total cost over \$20,000.00 to \$50,00.00 will be considered non-responsive and will not be evaluated.

Bidders are required to collect and pay Washington State taxes as applicable.

At the end of the Quotations Section, show the total cost associated with this bid, not to exceed **\$20,000.00** to **\$50,00.00**.

The evaluation process is designed to award this solicitation not necessarily to the Bidder of least cost, but rather to the Bidder whose bid best meets the requirements of this Solicitation. Reviewers will look for clearly described expenses that are appropriate for the activities described in your approach.

Use the following template to show how you plan to use this funding to fulfill this contract as described in your approach. You are not required to match this award, but if you plan to supplement these contract funds with other funding sources, please identify those expenses and the funding sources supporting them. You should already have that funding available. Add as many rows as needed to complete your budget.

Budget Template

Item Briefly describe any costs in each category	Dollar amount	Matched Funding Amount, if appropriate	Funding Source for Matched Funding, if using
Personnel			
Supplies			
Other goods and services			
Travel			
Contracted services			
Indirect			
Total Budget			

4. EVALUATION AND CONTRACT AWARD

4.1 EVALUTION PROCEDURE

Responsive bids will be evaluated strictly in accordance with the requirements stated in this solicitation and any amendment(s) issued. The evaluation of bids shall be accomplished by an evaluation team to be designated by the DOH, which will determine the ranking of the bids.

4.2 CLARIFICATION OF BID

The Solicitation Coordinator may contact the Bidder for clarification of any portion of the Bidder's bid at any time prior to executing a contract.

4.3 EVALUATION WEIGHTING AND SCORING

The following weighting and points will be assigned to the bid for evaluation purposes:

Re ea	viev	og Criteria vers will score section separately and can award up to the maximum points listed for ection. Scores will reflect how well the proposal answers the questions based on these a.	Maximum Points Per Section
1.	\mathbf{A}	pplicant Information and Fit	Up to 20
	✓	Vroom fits in the organization's work, mission and goals.	
	✓	Proposal demonstrates that staff and program reflect, honor and are rooted in the community.	
	✓	Organization demonstrates experience, qualifications and success administering	
		programs or activities in which it will embed Vroom. Consider optional resumes or bios of key staff as well as response to question in evaluating this criterion.	

	✓	To receive over 13 points, organization must have at least two years' of experience	
		successfully administering the program(s) or activities into which they will embed	
		Vroom.	
	\checkmark	To receive 7 to 13 points, organization must have at least one year of experience	
		successfully administering the program(s) or activities into which they will embed	
		Vroom.	
	✓	Describes a thoughtful approach to responding to feedback from partners or	
		customers.	
2.	Pot	ential Impact/Community Need	Up to 15
4.	1 00	Proposal clearly describes the community they are serving.	Op to 13
	✓	Proposal uses relevant data to describe how persistent inequities impact this	
	,	community or population.	
	√	Proposal makes a strong case for how community could benefit from Vroom.	
	✓	If they do not work in a specific geographic location, they provide a clear	
		explanation for how the unique characteristics of their population are better served	
		this way and describe capacity to provide direct services to this population despite	
		not being co-located with them.	
3.	Im	pact in Underserved Counties	Up to 10
	For	clearly making the case that at least 50% of the families you will reach will reside	•
	in:		
	✓	The highest priority counties (Asotin, Ferry, Franklin, Snohomish, Stevens) – up to	
		10 points.	
	✓	The second highest priority counties (Benton, Columbia, Garfield, Grays Harbor,	
	•	Island, Lincoln, Mason, Okanogan, Pacific, Skagit, Wahkiakum, Whitman) – up to	
4		5 points.	TI 4- 10
4.	Rea		Up to 10
	Hig	h scores will reflect clearly explained ability to	
	a.	reach a larger number of people (over 4000 per year while COVID restrictions are	
		in effect) OR	
	b.	reach a hard to reach population <i>OR</i>	
	c.	reach families not served by existing parenting supports <i>OR</i>	
	d.	some combination of a, b and c.	
5.	Ap	proach	Up to 25
	\checkmark	Clearly address the questions and describe a logical approach to embedding Vroom	
		in their program(s) or activities.	
	✓	Describe a logical approach to safely implementing Vroom during the pandemic	
		and adapting as the pandemic situation changes.	
	✓	There is a clear vision for sustaining Vroom implementation beyond this funding.	
	· ✓	If applicant or anyone else has promoted Vroom in focus community at any time,	
	-	this proposal complements and builds on that effort and demonstrates coordination	
		with other current efforts.	
		WILLI OLLICIT CHITCHS.	
TX 7.	arls =	lon	IIn to 10
W	ork p		Up to 10
W	√	Demonstrates thoughtful planning and seem achievable.	Up to 10
W	✓ ✓	Demonstrates thoughtful planning and seem achievable. Aligns with the work described in the approach.	Up to 10
	✓ ✓ ✓	Demonstrates thoughtful planning and seem achievable. Aligns with the work described in the approach. Strategies and timelines are clear.	-
	√ √ √ idget	Demonstrates thoughtful planning and seem achievable. Aligns with the work described in the approach. Strategies and timelines are clear.	Up to 10 Up to 10
	✓ ✓ ✓	Demonstrates thoughtful planning and seem achievable. Aligns with the work described in the approach. Strategies and timelines are clear. Expenses described clearly.	-
	√ √ √ idget	Demonstrates thoughtful planning and seem achievable. Aligns with the work described in the approach. Strategies and timelines are clear.	-
Bu	✓ ✓ ✓ Idget ✓	Demonstrates thoughtful planning and seem achievable. Aligns with the work described in the approach. Strategies and timelines are clear. Expenses described clearly.	-
Bu	✓ ✓ ✓ Idget ✓	Demonstrates thoughtful planning and seem achievable. Aligns with the work described in the approach. Strategies and timelines are clear. Expenses described clearly. Expenses are appropriate for the activities described in your approach.	Up to 10

Total Possible Standard Points	Up to 100
Bonus Points Available – completed, signed EO 18-03 received	Up to 5
Overall Points Scored	Up to 105

4.4 NOTIFICATION TO BIDDERS

The Bidder (s) with the highest total score(s) will be declared the Apparent Successful Bidder(s). This does not guarantee that the State will enter into a contract with the Bidder. Designation as an Apparent Successful Bidder allows the State to enter into contract negotiations with the Apparent Successful Bidder. Bidders that act or fail to act in reliance on this notification do so at their own risk and expense.

Bidders that were not selected for further negotiation or award will be notified by email.

4.5 DEBRIEFING OF UNSUCCESSFUL BIDDERS

The request for a debriefing conference must be received by the Solicitation Coordinator within three (3) business days after the announcement of the apparent successful bidder. The request should include a list of bidder attendees including their titles. Debriefing may be conducted by telephone, or by electronic means, as determined by the Solicitation Coordinator. The failure of a Bidder to make a timely request and/or attend a debriefing conference shall constitute a waiver of the right to submit a protest.

Discussion will be limited to a critique of the requesting Bidder's bid. Comparisons between bids or evaluations of the other bids will not be allowed. Debriefing conferences will be scheduled for a maximum of one hour.

4.6 PROTEST PROCEDURE

Bidders protesting this solicitation shall follow the procedures described below. Protests that do not follow these procedures shall not be considered.

This procedure is available to Bidders who submitted a response to this solicitation document and who have participated in a debriefing conference. Upon completing the debriefing conference, the Bidder is allowed five (5) business days to file a protest with the Solicitation Coordinator. The protest must be via email, include the solicitation number, be clearly labeled as "Protest", include a specific and complete statement of facts forming the basis of the protest, and include a description of the relief or corrective action requested.

A protest may be based only on one or more of the following:

- Bias, discrimination or conflict of interest on the part of the evaluator
- Errors in computing the scores; or
- Non-compliance with procedures described in the solicitation document

Upon receipt of a protest, a protest review will be held by a DOH agency representative. This representative will be a neutral party who was not involved in the solicitation evaluation and award process.

The agency representative will review the protest and all available facts and issue a response within ten (10) business days of receipt of the protest. If additional time is required, the protesting party will be notified of the estimated additional time needed to respond.

The final determination of the protest shall:

- Find the protest lacking in merit and uphold the DOH's action; or
- Find only technical or harmless errors in the DOH's acquisition process and determine the DOH to be in substantial compliance and reject the protest; or
- Find merit in the protest and provide the DOH options which may include
 - Correct the errors and re-evaluate all bids, and/or
 - Reissue the solicitation document and begin a new process, or
 - Make other findings and determine other courses of action as appropriate

If the DOH determines that the protest is without merit, the DOH will enter into a contract with the apparently successful bidder. If the protest is determined to have merit, one of the alternatives noted in the preceding paragraph will be taken.

The protest decision is final and not subject to administrative appeal. If the protesting bidder does not accept the DOH protest decision, the bidder may seek relief from the Superior Court in Washington State.

5. SOLICITATION EXHIBITS (Order and content of Exhibits may vary)

- Exhibit A Draft Scope of Work
- Exhibit B Bid Certifications and Assurances
- Exhibit B-1 Wage Theft Certification
- Exhibit C Executive Order 18-03 Certification
- Exhibit D Contract General Terms and Conditions (GT&Cs)

EXHIBIT A – DRAFT SCOPE OF WORK

Activation Approach in Funded Organizations

Funded applicants will embed Vroom in your programs, initiatives, and ongoing practice in a way that you can sustain beyond this funding. You will empower parents and caregivers to play a proactive role in children's early brain development by turning shared, everyday moments into brain building moments. You will use Vroom to connect with families and strengthen systems that support child health and development in your community.

Proposed approaches should fit with and enhance your existing work. Your approach should be culturally and linguistically appropriate for the populations you serve. It should honor and support community strengths.

We do not know how long COVID-19 will continue to create barriers to typical interactions with families. Your proposals should include strategies that can be safely implemented during the pandemic, for example through social distancing, virtual interactions and other ways – be creative. Your proposal should also be flexible enough to respond to the evolving pandemic situation over the next year.

A strong proposal will leverage and build your existing networks to make Vroom visible in creative ways to have a positive impact in your community. This may include direct outreach, training, and coaching partners on how to maximize their use of Vroom. While this opportunity is not primarily for a public outreach campaign, a strong proposal will include layered messages through public outlets and community events within your network. Consider using media such as newsletters, social media, poster and fliers, etc., to remind families of Vroom and spread awareness.

We prefer proposals to serve a defined population within a specific geographic area within the State of Washington. Proposals that are not contained within a specific geographic location should include a clear explanation for how the unique characteristics of your population are better served this way. It should also demonstrate your ability to directly engage with this population.

Family, Program, Community and System Desired Outcomes

- Integration of Vroom messages and promotion of brain building activities into program and practice, and eventually, collaborative efforts across programs, sectors, and systems increases to promote brain building among families served.
- Increase support of families who were previously not served by existing parent supports, such as home visiting, parent education, and play and learn.
- Increased awareness and knowledge (by community members, parents and caregivers) of the science behind brain building activities and child development.
- Increased understanding (by community members, parents and caregivers) of the unique role and agency parents and caregivers hold to influence a child's development.
- Improved family-friendly systems connecting families to services and resources.
- Improved parent or caregiver-child relationships.

• Increased community support and connectedness for families.

Contractor Expectations

Funded programs will complete the following required activities and be encouraged to complete the desirable activities.

Required Activities

- 1. Designate a Vroom coordinator or activation lead in your organization. This person will lead your organization's effort to integrate Vroom into your body of work. They will be DOH's primary contact for all contract activity and participate in bi-monthly contract check-in calls with DOH staff.
- 2. Develop and implement a detailed activation and evaluation plan that supports both Essentials' project goals and your organization's goals.
- Actively begin promoting Vroom content, messages and tools including website, mobile apps, and SMS service with the families you serve within three months of contract execution.
- 4. Actively participate in these meetings with DOH staff and other contractors. We will work with all contractors to find mutually agreeable meeting times.
 - A kickoff workshop early in the contract term. This may be in-person or virtual, depending on the state of the pandemic. DOH will cover travel costs for at least one representative of each funded organization if we meet in person.
 - Approximately monthly virtual check in meetings. We will hold separate one-on-one virtual meetings with each contracted organization every other month and group meetings with all contractors the alternate months.
- 5. Identify an approach to sustain Vroom in your work beyond this contract.
- 6. Submit complete and timely project deliverables using templates provided by DOH. Program staff will work with contractors to assure reporting approaches are useful to both contractors and the department, while minimizing the burden of reporting. Deliverables will include the following. Examples of past deliverable templates are available on request.
 - Detailed Activation and Evaluation plan, building on your proposal. (within first two months)
 - Quarterly Progress Reports documenting progress on activation and evaluation plans.
 - Sustainability plan outlining how you will leverage the work and lessons from this project to continue sharing Vroom.

Desirable activities

- 1. Provide input to help DOH develop, test and adapt messages about Vroom, child development and family support.
- 2. Attend a Washington State Vroom summit, if one is held. DOH may hold a Vroom summit in the second half of 2021. The summit would be a forum for connecting

with and learning from other organizations that promote brain building with Vroom. DOH hopes to pay for participant travel if there is an in-person summit.

Evaluation

You are NOT expected to submit an evaluation plan as part of your application. Essentials evaluation staff will work with awardees to develop your individual project evaluation plan that reflects mutually agreed upon evaluation goals and data collection, reporting, and other activities to support evaluation and learning.

Department of Health/Essentials for Childhood Role

Essentials is the Washington State Vroom anchor partner. Essentials staff at DOH recruit, support and coordinate across Vroom partners in Washington. We want to build a strong relationship with our contractors and learn together from successes and challenges.

DOH will support funded applicants with

<u>:</u>

- 1. Contract oversight and point of contact for overall project coordination.
- 2. Technical assistance and coaching to support contractors' achievement of project goals and deliverables.
- 3. Introduction to Vroom content and tools, and ongoing technical assistance.
- 4. An evaluator who will provide technical assistance in developing and implementing an evaluation plan.
- 5. Assistance connecting and coordinating with state programs and other partners, as needed.

EXHIBIT B – BID CERTIFICATIONS AND ASSURANCES

I/we make the following certifications and assurances as a required element of the bid to which it is attached, understanding that the truthfulness of the facts affirmed here and the continuing compliance with these requirements are conditions precedent to the award or continuation of the related contract(s):

- 1. I/we declare that all answers and statements made in the bid are true and correct.
- 2. The prices and/or cost data have been determined independently, without consultation, communication, or agreement with others for the purpose of restricting competition. However, I/we may freely join with other persons or organizations for the purpose of presenting a single bid.
- 3. The attached bid is a firm offer for a period of 60 days following receipt, and it may be accepted by the DOH without further negotiation (except where obviously required by lack of certainty in key terms) at any time within the 60-day period.
- 4. In preparing this bid, I/we have not been assisted by any current or former employee of the state of Washington whose duties relate (or did relate) to this bid or prospective contract, and who was assisting in other than his or her official, public capacity. (Any exceptions to these assurances are described in full detail on a separate page and attached to this document.)
- 5. I/we understand that the DOH will not reimburse me/us for any costs incurred in the preparation of this bid. All bids become the property of the DOH, and I/we claim no proprietary right to the ideas, writings, items, or samples, unless so stated in this proposal.
- 6. Unless otherwise required by law, the prices and/or cost data that have been submitted have not been knowingly disclosed by the Bidder and will not knowingly be disclosed by him/her prior to opening, directly or indirectly to any other Bidder or to any competitor.
- 7. I/we agree that submission of the attached proposal constitutes acceptance of the solicitation contents and the attached sample contract and general terms and conditions. If there are any exceptions to these terms, I/we have described those exceptions in detail on a page attached to this document.
- 8. No attempt has been made or will be made by the Bidder to induce any other person or firm to submit or not to submit a proposal for the purpose of restricting competition.
- 9. Information that has been determined to be proprietary or confidential has been clearly marked and included in this bid as a separate document.
- 10. If any staff member(s) who will perform work on this contract has retired from the State of Washington under the provisions of the 2008 Early Retirement Factors legislation, his/her name(s) is noted on a separately attached page.
- 11. I/we declare that we are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded in any Federal department or agency from participating in transactions.

Signature of Bidder		
6		
Title	Date	

EXHIBIT B-1 – CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION WAGE THEFT PREVENTION – RESPONSIBLE BIDDER CRITERIA WASHINGTON STATE GOODS & SERVICES CONTRACTS

Prior to awarding a contract, agencies are required to determine that a bidder is a 'responsible bidder.' See RCW 39.26.160(2) & (4). Pursuant to legislative enactment in 2017, the responsible bidder criteria include a contractor certification that the contractor has not willfully violated Washington's wage laws. See Chap. 258, 2017 Laws (enacting SSB 5301).

	Procurement No	o. DOH-RFP25654-0		
	Procurement Solicitation Dated	d: October 26, 2020		
I hereby ce	ertify, on behalf of the firm identified below, as	s follows (check one):		
	and notice of assessment issued by the Wast through a civil judgement entered by a court of violated, as defined in <u>RCW 49.48.082</u> , any pro-	been determined by a final and binding citation shington Department of Labor and Industries or of limited or general jurisdiction to have willfully provision of RCW chapters 49.45, 49.48, or 49.52 above-referenced procurement or solicitation date.		
	OR			
	VIOLATIONS OF WAGE LAWS. This firm has been determined by a final and binding citation and notice of assessment issued by the Washington Department of Labor and Industries or through a civil judgement entered by a court of limited or general jurisdiction to have willfully violated, as defined in RCW 49.48.082 , any provision of RCW chapters 49.45 , 49.48 , or 49.52 within three (3) years prior to the date of the above-referenced procurement or solicitation date.			
	I hereby certify, under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of Washington, that the certifications herein are true and correct and that I am authorized to make these certification on behalf of the firm listed herein.			
FIRM I				
	Name of Contractor/Bidder – Pri	int full legal entity name of firm		
By:	C'anadana Cantharian Indonesia	Dist Many 6		
	Signature of authorized person	Print Name of person making certifications for firm		
Title:		Place:		
	Title of person signing certificate	Print city and state where signed		
Date:				
	Return Contractor Certification to Probids@doh.wa			

Request for Proposals No. **DOH-RFP25654-0**

EXHIBIT C – EXECUTIVE ORDER 18-03 – WORKERS' RIGHTS WASHINGTON STATE GOODS & SERVICES CONTRACTS CERTIFICATION

Pursuant to the Washington State Governor's Executive Order 18-03 (dated June 12, 2018), the Washington State Department of Health is seeking to contract with qualified entities and business owners who certify that their employees are not, as a condition of employment, subject to mandatory individual arbitration clauses and class or collective action waivers.

Procurement No.: DOH-RFP25654-0	
I hereby certify, on behalf of the firm identified	below, as follows (check one):
ACTION WAIVERS FOR EMPLOYEE	TRATION CLAUSES AND CLASS OR COLLECTIVE S. This firm does NOT require its employees, as a condition ory individual arbitration clauses or class or collective action
	OR
ACTION WAIVERS FOR EMPLOYEE	ATION CLAUSES AND CLASS OR COLLECTIVE S. This firm requires its employees, as a condition of individual arbitration clauses or class or collective action
	the laws of the State of Washington, that the certifications zed to make these certifications on behalf of the firm listed
FIRM NAME:	
Name of Contractor/Bidder – Print ful	l legal entity name of firm
Ву:	
Signature of authorized person	Print Name of person making certifications for firm
Title:	Place:
Title of person signing certificate	Print city and state where signed
Date:	

Return Contractor Certification to Procurement Coordinator at: bids@doh.wa.gov

EXHIBIT D – CONTRACT GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (GT&Cs)

	CONT
Washington State Department of	
M Hoalth	
7 1 1 CULLI	

CONTRACT NUMBER:	SUB-RECIPIENT □YES ⊠NO
	FFATA FORM REQUIRED ☐YES ☐NO

THIS AGREEMENT is made by and between the State of Washington Department of Health, hereinafter referred to as DOH, and the party whose name appears below, hereinafter referred to as Contractor.

CONTRACTOR NAME and ADDRESS:

UBI:

PURPOSE:

IT IS MUTUALLY AGREED THAT:

STATEMENT OF WORK: The Contractor shall provide all the necessary personnel, equipment, materials, goods and services and otherwise do all things necessary for or incidental to the performance of the work as described in Exhibit A, attached hereto and incorporated herein.

PERIOD OF PERFORMANCE: Subject to its other provisions, the period of performance under this contract shall be from through unless sooner terminated as provided herein. Any work done outside of the period of performance shall be provided at no cost to DOH.

DEPARTMENT OF ENTERPRISE SERVICES APPROVAL: This contract may be required to be filed with the Department of Enterprise Services (DES) for approval under the provisions of Chapter 39.26 RCW. No contract or amendment required to be so filed is effective and no work thereunder shall be commenced nor payment made therefore until ten (10) working days following the date of filing, and, if required, until approved by DES. In the event DES fails to approve the contract or amendment, the contract shall be null and void.

FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY AND TRANSPARENCY ACT (FFATA): If checked above, this contract is supported by federal funds that require compliance with the Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA or the Transparency Act). The purpose of the Transparency Act is to make information available online so the public can see how federal funds are spent.

To comply with the act and be eligible to enter into this contract, your organization must have a Data Universal Numbering System (DUNS®) number. A DUNS® number provides a method to verify data about your organization. If you do not already have one, you may receive a DUNS® number free of charge by contacting Dun and Bradstreet at www.dnb.com.

Information about your organization and this contract will be made available on www.USASpending.gov
by DOH as required by P.L. 109-282. DOH's form, Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act
Data Collection Form, is considered part of this contract and must be completed and returned along with
the contract.

CONSIDERATION: The maximum consideration available under this contract shall not exceed \$ without a properly executed written amendment signed by representatives of both parties authorized to do so. Consideration includes but is not limited to all taxes, fees, surcharges, etc.

Source of Funds:			
Federal: \$	State: \$	Other: \$	TOTAL:

Contractor agrees to comply with all applicable rules and regulations associated with these funds.

Unless otherwise indicated in this contract, any State funds which are unexpended as of June 30th will not be available for carry over into the next State fiscal year (July – June).

INVOICES AND PAYMENT: Contractor will submit invoices to the DOH Project Manager for all amounts to be paid. Invoices must reference this contract number and provide detailed information as requested. All invoices must be approved by DOH prior to payment; approval will not be unreasonably withheld. DOH will authorize payment only upon satisfactory completion and acceptance of deliverables and for allowable costs as outlined in the statement of work and/or budget. DOH will return all incorrect or incomplete invoices and will not pay for services that occur outside the period of performance. The Contractor will not invoice for services if they are entitled to payment, have been, or will be paid by any other source for that service.

DOH will issue payment within 30 days of receiving a correct and complete invoice and approving the deliverable(s). DOH must receive correct and complete invoices within 60 days of the contract expiration date. Late invoices will be paid at the discretion of DOH and are contingent upon the availability of funds. Failure to submit a properly completed IRS form W-9 may result in delayed payments.

GOVERNANCE: In the event of an inconsistency in this contract, unless otherwise provided herein, the inconsistency shall be resolved by giving precedence in the following order:

- A. Federal statutes and regulations
- B. State statutes and regulations
- C. Contract amendments
- D. The contract (in this order)
 - 1. Special Terms and Conditions (Exhibit C if used)
 - 2. Federal compliance and Standard Federal Certifications and Assurances (Attachment 1) *if applicable*
 - 3. Primary document (document that includes the signature page)
 - 4. Standard/General Terms and Conditions (Exhibit B)
 - 5. Statement of Work (Exhibit A)
 - 6. DOH-RFP25654-0 and the bidder's response

UNDERSTANDING: This contract, including referenced exhibits, attachments and documents included herein by reference, contains all the terms and conditions agreed upon by the parties. No other understandings, oral or otherwise, regarding the subject matter of this contract shall exist or bind any of the parties hereto.

APPROVAL: This contract shall be subject to the written approval of DOH Contracting Officer and shall not be binding until so approved. Only the Contracting Officer or his/her designee, by written delegation made prior to action, shall have the expressed, implied, or apparent authority to alter, amend, modify, or waive any clause or condition of this contract. Furthermore, any alteration, amendment, modification, or

waiver of any clause or condition of this contract is not effective or binding unless made in writing and signed by the Contracting Officer.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF: DOH and the Contractor have signed this contract.

CONTRACTOR SIGNATURE	DATE
PRINT OR TYPE NAME AND TITLE	
DOH CONTRACTING OFFICER SIGNATURE	DATE

This contract has been approved as to form by the attorney general.

Exhibit D

FINAL NEGOTIATED STATEMENT OF WORK WILL BE INSERTED HERE

GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS

I. **DEFINITIONS**

As used throughout this contract, the following terms shall have the meanings set forth below:

- 1. "Allowable Cost" shall mean an expenditure which meets the test of the Uniform Guidance (2CFR 200) (see "I. Federal Compliance"). The most significant factors affecting allowability of cost are; 1) they must be necessary and reasonable, 2) they must be allocable, 3) they must be authorized or not prohibited under State or local laws and regulations, and 4) they must be adequately documented. For more specifics see Selected Items of Cost 2 CFR 200.420).
- 2. "Client" shall mean an agency, firm, organization, individual or other entity applying for or receiving services under this contract.
- 3. "Cognizant State Agency" shall mean the State agency from whom the sub-recipient receives federal financial assistance. If funds are received from more than one State agency, the cognizant State agency shall be the agency who contributes the largest portion of federal financial assistance to the sub-recipient, unless a cognizant State agency has been designated by OFM.
- 4. "Confidential Information" shall mean information that is exempt from disclosure under chapter 42.56 RCW, and other State or Federal statutes and regulations.
- 5. "Contractor" shall mean that agency, firm, provider, organization, individual or other entity performing services under this contract. It shall include any subcontractor retained by the prime contractor as permitted under the terms of this contract.

A contract is for the purpose of obtaining goods and services for the non-Federal entity's own use and creates a procurement relationship with the Contractor. See §200.22 Contract. Characteristics indicative of a procurement relationship between the non-Federal entity and a Contractor are when the non-Federal entity receiving the Federal funds:

- A. Provides the goods and services within normal business operations;
- B. Provides similar goods or services to many different purchasers;
- C. Normally operates in a competitive environment;
- D. Provides goods or services that are ancillary to the operation of the Federal program; and
- E. Is not subject to compliance requirements of the Federal program as a result of the agreement, though similar requirements may apply for other reasons.
- 6. "Contracting Officer" shall mean that individual(s) of the Contracts and Procurement Office of DOH and his/her delegates within that office authorized to execute this contract on behalf of DOH.
- 7. "Department" shall mean the Department of Health (DOH) of the State of Washington, any division, section, office, unit or other entity of the department, or any of the officers or other officials lawfully representing DOH.

- 8. "Equipment" shall mean an article of non-expendable, tangible property having a useful life of more than one year and an acquisition cost of \$5,000 or more.
- 9. "Noncompliance" shall mean if a non-Federal entity fails to comply with Federal statutes, regulations or the terms and conditions of a Federal award, the Federal awarding agency or pass-through entity may impose additional conditions, as described in §200.207 Specific conditions. If the Federal awarding agency or pass-through entity determines that noncompliance cannot be remedied by imposing additional conditions, the Federal awarding agency or pass-through entity may take one or more of the following actions, as appropriate in the circumstances:
 - A. Temporarily withhold cash payments pending correction of the deficiency by the non-Federal entity or more severe enforcement action by the Federal awarding agency or pass-through entity.
 - B. Disallow (that is, deny both use of funds and any applicable matching credit for) all or part of the cost of the activity or action not in compliance.
 - C. Wholly or partly suspend or terminate the Federal award.
 - D. Initiate suspension or debarment proceedings as authorized under 2 CFR part 180 and Federal awarding agency regulations (or in the case of a pass-through entity, recommend such a proceeding be initiated by a Federal awarding agency).
 - E. Withhold further Federal awards for the project or program.
 - F. Take other remedies that may be legally available.
- 10. "Personal Information" shall mean information identifiable to any person, including, but not limited to, information that relates to a person's name, health, finances, education, business, use or receipt of governmental services or other activities, addresses, telephone numbers, social security numbers, driver license numbers, other identifying numbers, and any financial identifiers. Personal information includes "protected health information" as set forth in 45 CFR § 164.50 as currently drafted and subsequently amended or revised and any other information that may be exempt from disclosure to the public or other unauthorized persons under either chapter 42.56 RCW or other State and Federal statutes.
- 11. "Reimbursement" shall mean that DOH will repay the Contractor for allowable costs incurred under the terms of this contract.
- 12. "Sensitive Data" shall mean data that is held confidentially, and if compromised, may cause harm to individual citizens or create a liability for the State.
- 13. "Specific Conditions"
 - A. The Federal awarding agency or pass-through entity may impose additional specific award conditions as needed, in accordance with paragraphs (b) and (c) of this section, under the following circumstances:
 - 1) Based on the criteria set forth in §200.205 Federal awarding agency review of risk posed by applicants;

- 2) When an applicant or recipient has a history of failure to comply with the general or specific terms and conditions of a Federal award;
- 3) When an applicant or recipient fails to meet expected performance goals as described in §200.210 Information contained in a Federal award; or
- 4) When an applicant or recipient is not otherwise responsible.
- B. These additional Federal award conditions may include items such as the following:
 - 1) Requiring payments as reimbursements rather than advance payments;
 - 2) Withholding authority to proceed to the next phase until receipt of evidence of acceptable performance within a given period of performance;
 - 3) Requiring additional, more detailed financial reports;
 - 4) Requiring additional project monitoring;
 - 5) Requiring the non-Federal entity to obtain technical or management assistance; or
 - 6) Establishing additional prior approvals.
- C. The Federal awarding agency or pass-through entity must notify the applicant or non-Federal entity as to:
 - 1. The nature of the additional requirements;
 - 2. The reason why the additional requirements are being imposed;
 - 3. The nature of the action needed to remove the additional requirement, if applicable;
 - 4. The time allowed for completing the actions if applicable, and
 - 5. The method for requesting reconsideration of the additional requirements imposed.
- D. Any specific conditions must be promptly removed once the conditions that prompted them have been corrected.
- 14. "Subcontractor" shall mean a person, partnership, or company, not in the employ of or owned by the Contractor, who is performing all or part of those services under a separate contract with or on behalf of the Contractor. The terms "subcontractor" and "subcontractors" mean subcontractor(s) in any tier
- 15. "Subrecipient" shall mean a non-Federal entity that received a subaward from a pass-through entity to carry out part of a Federal program; but does not include an individual that is a beneficiary of such program. A subrecipient may also be a recipient of other Federal awards directly from a Federal awarding agency. (2 CFR 200.93)

Characteristics which support the classification of the non-Federal entity as a subrecipient include when the non-Federal entity:

- A. Determines who is eligible to receive what Federal assistance;
- B. Has its performance measured in relation to whether objectives of a Federal program were met;
- C. Has responsibility for programmatic decision making;
- D. Is responsible for adherence to applicable Federal program requirements specified in the Federal award; and
- E. In accordance with its contract, uses the Federal funds to carry out a program for a public purpose specified in authorizing statute, as opposed to providing goods or services for the benefit of a pass-through entity.

16. "Successor" shall mean any entity which, through amalgamation, consolidation, or other legal succession becomes invested with rights and assumes burdens of the first contractor/vendor.

II. GENERAL CONDITIONS

- 1. ACCESS TO DATA In compliance with chapter 39.26 RCW, the Contractor shall provide access to data generated under this contract to DOH, the Joint Legislative Audit and Review Committee, and the State Auditor at no additional cost. This includes access to all information that supports the findings, conclusions, and recommendations of the Contractor's reports, including computer models and methodology for those models. The Contractor agrees to make personal information covered under this contract available to DOH for inspection or to amend the personal information, as directed by DOH. Contractor shall, as directed by DOH, incorporate any amendments to the personal information into all copies of such personal information maintained by the Contractor or its subcontractors.
- 2. **ADVANCE PAYMENTS PROHIBITED** No payment in advance or in anticipation of services or supplies to be provided under this contract shall be made by DOH.
- 3. **AMENDMENTS** This contract may be amended by mutual written contract of the parties. Such amendments shall not be binding unless they are in writing and signed by personnel authorized to bind each of the parties.
- 4. AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT (ADA) OF 1990, PUBLIC LAW 101-336, also referred to as the "ADA" 28 CFR Part 35 The Contractor must comply with the ADA, which provides comprehensive civil rights protection to individuals with disabilities in the areas of employment, public accommodations, State and local government services, and telecommunications.
- 5. **ASSIGNABILITY** Neither this contract nor any claim arising under this contract shall be transferred or assigned by the Contractor without prior written consent of DOH.
- 6. **ATTORNEYS' FEES** In the event of litigation or other action brought to enforce contract terms, each party agrees to bear its own attorney's fees and costs.
- 7. CHANGE IN STATUS In the event of substantive change in the legal status, organizational structure, or fiscal reporting responsibility of the Contractor, Contractor agrees to notify DOH of the change. Contractor shall provide notice as soon as practicable, but no later than thirty days after such a change takes effect.
- 8. **CONFIDENTIALITY/SAFEGUARDING OF INFORMATION** The use or disclosure by any party, either verbally or in writing, of any Confidential Information shall be subject to Chapter 42.56 RCW and Chapter 70.02 RCW, as well as other applicable Federal and State laws and administrative rules governing confidentiality. Specifically, the Contractor agrees to limit access to Confidential Information to the minimum amount of information necessary, to the fewest number of people, for the least amount of time required to do the work. The obligations set forth in this clause shall survive completion, cancellation, expiration, or termination of this contract.
 - A. Notification of Confidentiality Breach

Upon a breach or suspected breach of confidentiality, the Contractor shall immediately notify the DOH Privacy Officer at dohnwa.gov. For the purposes of this contract, "immediately" shall mean within two calendar days.

The Contractor will take steps necessary to mitigate any known harmful effects of such unauthorized access including, but not limited to sanctioning employees, notifying subjects, and taking steps necessary to stop further unauthorized access. The Contractor agrees to indemnify and hold harmless DOH for any damages related to unauthorized use or disclosure by the Contractor, its officers, directors, employees, subcontractors, or agents.

Any breach of this clause may result in termination of the contract and the demand for return of all Information.

B. Subsequent Disclosure

The Contractor will not release, divulge, publish, transfer, sell, disclose, or otherwise make the Confidential Information known to any other entity or person without the express prior written consent of the Secretary of Health, or as required by law.

If responding to public record disclosure requests under RCW 42.56, the Contractor agrees to notify and discuss with the DOH Privacy Officer requests for all information that are part of this contract, prior to disclosing the information. The Contractor further agrees to provide DOH a minimum of two calendar weeks to initiate legal action to secure a protective order under RCW 42.56.540.

9. **CONFLICT OF INTEREST** – Notwithstanding any determination by the Executive Ethics Board or other tribunal, DOH may, in its sole discretion, by written notice to the Contractor, terminate this contract if it is found, after due notice and examination by DOH that there is a violation of the ethics in public service act, chapter 42.52 RCW, or any similar statute involving the Contractor in the procurement of, or performance of this contract.

In the event this contract is terminated as provided above, DOH shall be entitled to pursue the same remedies against the Contractor as it could pursue in the event of a breach of the contract by the Contractor. The rights and remedies of DOH provided for in this section shall not be exclusive are in addition to any other rights and remedies provided by law. The existence of facts upon which DOH makes a determination under this section shall be an issue and may be reviewed as provided in the "disputes" section of this contract.

10. **COVENANT AGAINST CONTINGENT FEES** – The Contractor warrants that no person or selling agent has been employed or retained to solicit or secure this contract upon an agreement or understanding for a commission, percentage, brokerage or contingent fee, excepting bona fide employees or bona fide established agents maintained by the Contractor for the purpose of securing business. DOH shall have the right, in the event of breach of this clause by the Contractor, to annul this contract without liability, or in its discretion, to deduct from the contract price or consideration or recover by other means the full amount of such commission, percentage, brokerage or contingent fee.

- 11. **DEBARMENT** The Contractor, by signature to this contract, certifies that the Contractor is not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded in any Federal department or agency from participating in transactions. The Contractor agrees to include the above requirement in all subcontracts into which it enters to complete this contract.
- 12. **DISPUTES** The parties shall use their best, good faith efforts to cooperatively resolve disputes and problems that arise in connection with this contract. Both parties will continue without delay to carry out their respective responsibilities under this contract while attempting to resolve the dispute under this section. When a genuine dispute arises between DOH and the Contractor regarding the terms of this contract or the responsibilities imposed herein which cannot be resolved at the project management level, either party may submit a request for a dispute resolution to the DOH Contracts Unit which shall oversee the following dispute resolution process: DOH shall appoint a representative to a dispute panel; the Contractor shall appoint a representative to the dispute panel; DOH's and Contractor's representatives shall mutually agree on a third person to chair the dispute panel. The dispute panel shall thereafter decide the dispute with the majority prevailing.

A party's request for a dispute resolution must:

- be in writing,
- state the disputed issues,
- state the relative positions of the parties,
- state the Contractor's name, address, and his/her department contract number,
- be mailed within thirty (30) calendar days after the party could reasonably be expected to have knowledge of the issue which he/she now disputes to:

ATTN: Contracts and Procurement Manager **DOH Contracts Unit** PO Box 47905 Olympia, WA 98504-7905

This dispute resolution process constitutes the sole administrative remedy available under this contract. The parties agree that this resolution process shall precede any action in a judicial and quasi-judicial tribunal.

- 13. **EFFECTIVE DATE** Unless otherwise specified under period of performance, the effective date of this contract and subsequent amendments, if any, is the date of execution. The date of execution is the last date of signature of the parties to the contract. Contractor assumes all liability for any expenses incurred prior to the date of execution or in the event the contract/amendment is not executed.
- 14. GOVERNING LAW This contract shall be governed by the laws of the State of Washington and applicable federal laws and regulations. The venue of any legal action or suit concerning this contract shall be the Thurston County Superior Court and all actions or suits thereon shall be brought therein.
- 15. **INDEMNIFICATION** To the fullest extent permitted by law, Contractor shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless the State of Washington, DOH, agencies of the State and all officials,

and employees of the State, from and against all claims arising out of or resulting from the performance of the contract. "Claim" as used in this contract means any financial loss, claim, suit, action, damage, or expense, including but not limited to attorney's fees, attributable for bodily injury, sickness, disease or death, or injury to or destruction of tangible property including loss of use resulting therefrom. Contractor's obligation to indemnify, defend, and hold harmless includes any claim by Contractors' agents, employees, representatives, or any subcontractor or its employees.

Contractor expressly agrees to indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the State for any claim arising out of or incident to Contractor's or any subcontractor's performance or failure to perform the contract. Contractor's obligation to indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the State shall not be eliminated or reduced by any actual or alleged concurrent negligence of State or its agencies, employees and officials.

Contractor waives its immunity under Title 51 RCW to the extent it is required to indemnify, defend and hold harmless State and its agencies, officials, agents or employees.

- 16. **INDEPENDENT CAPACITY OF THE CONTRACTOR** The parties intend that an independent contractor relationship will be created by this contract. The Contractor and his or her employees or agents performing under the contract are not employees of DOH. The contractor shall not hold himself/herself out as nor claim to be an officer or employee of DOH or of the State of Washington by reason hereof, nor will the Contractor make any claim of right, privilege or benefit which would accrue to such employee under law. Conduct and control of the work will be solely with the Contractor.
- 17. **INDUSTRIAL INSURANCE COVERAGE** The Contractor shall comply with the provisions of Title 51 RCW, Industrial Insurance. Prior to performing work under this contract, the Contractor shall provide or purchase industrial insurance coverage for the Contractor's employees, as may be required of an "employer" as defined in Title 51 RCW, and shall maintain full compliance with Title 51RCW during the course of this contract. If the Contractor fails to provide industrial insurance coverage or fails to pay premiums or penalties on behalf of its employees as may be required by law, DOH may collect from the Contractor the full amount payable to the Industrial Insurance accident fund. DOH may deduct the amount owed by the Contractor to the accident fund from the amount payable to the Contractor by DOH under this contract, and transmit the deducted amount to the Department of Labor and Industries, Division of Insurance Services. This provision does not waive any of the Department of Labor and Industries rights to collect from the Contractor.

Industrial insurance coverage through the Department of Labor & Industries is optional for sole proprietors, partners, corporate officers and others, per RCW 51.12.020.

18. **INSURANCE** – The Contractor shall provide insurance coverage as set out in this section. The intent of the required insurance is to protect the State should there be any claims, suits, actions, costs, damages or expenses arising from any negligent or intentional act or omission of the Contractor or subcontractor, or agents of either, while performing under the terms of this contract. The Contractor shall provide insurance coverage which shall be maintained in full force and effect during the term of this Contract, as follows:

- A. Commercial General Liability Insurance Policy Provide a commercial general liability insurance policy, including contractual liability, in adequate quantity to protect against legal liability arising out of contract activity but no less than \$1,000,000 per occurrence. Additionally, the Contractor is responsible for ensuring that any subcontractors provide adequate insurance coverage for the activities arising out of subcontracts.
- **B.** Automobile Liability In the event that services delivered pursuant to this contract involve the use of vehicles, either owned or unowned by the Contractor, automobile liability insurance shall be required. The minimum limit for automobile liability is:
 - 1) \$1,000,000 per occurrence, using a combined single limit for bodily injury and property damage
- C. The insurance required shall be issued by an insurance company/ies authorized to do business within the State of Washington, and shall name the State of Washington, and its employees as additional insureds under the insurance policy/ies. All policies shall be primary to any other valid and collectable insurance. Contractor shall instruct the insurers to give DOH 30 days advance notice of any insurance cancellation.

Upon request, Contractor shall submit to DOH, a certificate of insurance which outlines the coverage and limits defined in the Insurance section. If a certificate of insurance is requested, Contractor shall submit renewal certificates as appropriate during the term of the contract.

- 19. **LICENSING, ACCREDITATION AND REGISTRATION** The Contractor shall comply with all applicable local, State, and Federal licensing, accreditation and registration requirements/standards, necessary for the performance of this contract.
- 20. **LIMITATION OF AUTHORITY** Only the Contracting Officer or his/her delegate by writing (delegation to be made prior to action) shall have the express, implied, or apparent authority to alter, amend, modify, or waive any clause or condition of this contract on behalf of DOH. No alteration, modification, or waiver of any clause or condition of this contract is effective or binding unless made in writing and signed by the Contracting Officer.
- 21. **NONDISCRIMINATION** During the performance of this contract, the Contractor shall comply with all Federal and State nondiscrimination laws, regulations and policies.
- 22. **NONDISCRIMINATION LAWS NONCOMPLIANCE** In the event of the Contractor's noncompliance or refusal to comply with any nondiscrimination law, regulation, or policy, this contract may be rescinded, canceled or terminated in whole or in part, and the Contractor may be declared ineligible for further contracts with DOH. The Contractor shall, however, be given a reasonable time in which to cure this noncompliance. Any dispute may be resolved in accordance with the disputes procedure set forth herein.
- 23. **OVERPAYMENTS AND ASSERTION OF LIEN** In the event that DOH establishes overpayments or erroneous payments made to the Contractor under this contract, DOH may secure repayment, plus interest, if any, through the filing of a lien against the Contractor's real property, or by requiring the posting of a bond, assignment or deposit, or some other form of security acceptable to DOH, or by doing both.

24. **PRIVACY** – Personal information including, but not limited to "protected health information" collected, used or acquired in connection with this contract shall be used solely for the purposes of this contract. Contractor and its subcontractors agree not to release, divulge, publish, transfer, sell or otherwise make known to unauthorized persons personal information without the express written consent of DOH or as provided by law. Contractor agrees to implement physical, electronic and managerial safeguards to prevent unauthorized access to personal information.

DOH reserves the right to monitor, audit, or investigate the use of personal information collected, used or acquired by the contractor through this contract. The monitoring, auditing, or investigating may include but is not limited to "salting" by DOH. Contractor shall certify the return or destruction of all personal information upon expiration of this contract. Salting is the act of placing a record containing unique but false information in a database that can be used later to identify inappropriate disclosure of data contained in the database.

Any breach of this provision may result in termination of the contract and the demand for return of all personal information. The contractor agrees to indemnify and hold harmless DOH for any damages related to the contractor's unauthorized use of personal information.

For the purposes of this provision, personal information includes but is not limited to information identifiable to an individual that relates to a natural person's health, finances, education, business, use or receipt of governmental services, or other activities, names, addresses, telephone numbers, social security numbers, driver license numbers, financial profiles, credit card numbers, financial identifiers and other identifying numbers.

- 25. **PUBLICITY** The Contractor agrees to submit to DOH all advertising and publicity matters relating to this contract wherein DOH's name is mentioned or language used from which the connection of DOH's name may, in DOH's judgment, be inferred or implied. The Contractor agrees not to publish or use such advertising and publicity matters without the prior written consent of DOH.
- 26. **RECORDS, DOCUMENTS, AND REPORTS** –The Contractor shall maintain books, records, documents, data and other evidence relating to this contract and performance of the services described herein, including but not limited to accounting procedures and practices which sufficiently and properly reflect all direct and indirect costs of any nature expended in the performance of this contract. Contractor shall retain such records for a period of six (6) years following the date of final payment. At no additional cost, these records, including materials generated under the contract, shall be subject at all reasonable times to inspection, review or audit by DOH, personnel duly authorized by DOH, the Office of the State Auditor, and Federal and State officials so authorized by law, regulation or agreement.

If the contract reimburses the Contractor for costs incurred in performance, the Contractor shall in addition maintain books, records, documents and other evidence of procedures and practices which sufficiently and properly reflect all direct and indirect costs of any nature expended in the performance of this contract.

If any litigation, claim or audit is started before the expiration of the six (6) year period, the records shall be retained until all litigation, claims, or audit findings involving the records have been resolved.

- 27. **REGISTRATION WITH DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE** The Contractor shall complete registration with the Washington State Department of Revenue, if applicable, and be responsible for payment of all taxes due on payments made under this contract.
- 28. **RIGHT OF INSPECTION** The Contractor shall provide right of access to its facilities to DOH, or any of its officers, or to any other authorized employee or official of the State of Washington or the federal government, at all reasonable times, in order to monitor and evaluate performance, compliance, and/or quality assurance under this contract. The Contractor shall make available information necessary for DOH to comply with the client's right to access, amend, and receive an accounting of disclosures of their Personal Information according to the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 (HIPAA) or any regulations enacted or revised pursuant to the HIPAA provisions and applicable provisions of Washington State law. The Contractor's internal policies and procedures, books, and records relating to the safeguarding, use, and disclosure of personal information obtained or used as a result of this contract shall be made available to DOH and the U.S. Secretary of the Department of Health & Human Services, upon request.
- 29. **RIGHTS IN DATA/COPYRIGHT** Unless otherwise provided, all materials produced exclusively under this contract shall be considered "works for hire" as defined by the U.S. Copyright Act and shall be owned by DOH. DOH shall be considered the author of such Materials. In the event the Materials are not considered "works for hire" under the U.S. Copyright laws, Contractor hereby irrevocably assigns all right, title, and interest in Materials, including all intellectual property rights, to DOH effective from the moment of creation of such materials.

Materials means all items in any format and includes, but is not limited to, data, reports, documents, pamphlets, advertisements, books, magazines, surveys, studies, computer programs, films, tapes, and/or sound reproductions that derive exclusively from the Contractor's work under this contract. Ownership includes the right to copyright, patent, register and the ability to transfer these rights.

For materials that are delivered under the contract, but that incorporate pre-existing materials not produced under the contract, Contractor hereby grants to DOH a nonexclusive, royalty-free, irrevocable license (with rights to sublicense others) in such materials to translate, reproduce, distribute, prepare derivative works, publicly perform, and publicly display. The Contractor warrants and represents that Contractor has all rights and permissions, including intellectual property rights, moral rights and rights of publicity, necessary to grant such a license to DOH.

The Contractor shall exert all reasonable effort to advise DOH, at the time of delivery of materials furnished under this contract, of all known or potential invasions of privacy contained therein and of any portion of such document which was not produced in the performance of this contract. DOH shall receive prompt written notice of each notice or claim of copyright infringement received by the Contractor with respect to any data delivered under this contract. DOH shall have the right to modify or remove any restrictive markings placed upon the data by the Contractor.

- 30. **SECURITY OF INFORMATION** Unless otherwise specifically authorized by the DOH IT Security Officer, Contractor receiving confidential information under this contract assures that:
 - It is compliant with the applicable provisions of the Washington State Office of the Chief Information Officer's policy, Securing Information Technology Assets, available at https://ocio.wa.gov/policy/securing-information-technology-assets-standards
 - It will provide DOH copies of its IT security policies, practices and procedures upon the request of the DOH IT Security Officer.
 - DOH may at any time conduct an audit of the Contractor's security practices and/or infrastructure to assure compliance with the security requirements of this contract.
 - It has implemented physical, electronic and administrative safeguards that are consistent with OCIO IT security standards and guidelines to prevent unauthorized access, use, modification or disclosure of DOH Confidential Information in any form. This includes, but is not limited to, restricting access to specifically authorized individuals and services through the use of:
 - Documented access authorization and change control procedures;
 - Card key systems that restrict, monitor and log access;
 - Locked racks for the storage of servers that contain Confidential Information or AES encryption (128bit or stronger) to protect confidential data at rest;
 - Documented patch management practices that assure all network systems are running critical security updates within 6 days of release when the exploit is in the wild, and within 30 days of release for all others:
 - Documented anti-virus strategies that assure all systems are running the most current anti-virus signatures within 1 day of release;
 - Complex passwords that are systematically enforced and expire at least every 180 days;
 - Strong (Two Factor) authentication mechanisms that assure the identity of individuals who access Confidential Information;
 - Account lock-out after 5 failed authentication attempts for a minimum of 20 minutes, or for Confidential Information, until administrator reset;
 - AES encrypted (128bit or stronger) sessions for all data transmissions.
 - Firewall rules and network address translation that isolate database servers from web servers and public networks;
 - Regular review of firewall rules and configurations to assure compliance with authorization and change control procedures;
 - Log management and intrusion detection/prevention systems;
 - A documented and tested incident response plan

Any breach of this clause may result in termination of the contract and the demand for return of all personal information.

- 31. **SEVERABILITY** If any provision of this contract or any provision of any document incorporated by reference shall be held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect the other provisions of this contract which can be given effect without the invalid provision, and to this end the provisions of this contract are declared to be severable.
- 32. **SITE SECURITY** While on DOH premises, Contractor, its agents, employees, or subcontractors shall conform in all respects with physical, fire or other security policies or regulations. Failure to comply with these regulations may be grounds for revoking or suspending security access to these facilities. DOH reserves the right and authority to immediately revoke security access to Contractor

staff for any real or threatened breach of this provision. Upon reassignment or termination of any Contractor staff, Contractor agrees to promptly notify DOH.

33. **SUBCONTRACTING** – Neither the Contractor, nor any subcontractors, shall enter into subcontracts for any of the work contemplated under this contract without prior written approval of DOH. In no event shall the existence of the subcontract operate to release or reduce the liability of the Contractor to DOH for any breach in the performance of the Contractor's duties. This clause does not apply to Hospitals and/or Medical Clinics that must contract with specialty physicians (e.g. anesthesiologists, radiologists, physicians groups, independent practitioners, etc.) nor does it include contracts of employment between the contractor and personnel assigned to work under this contract.

Additionally, the Contractor is responsible for ensuring that all terms, conditions, assurances and certifications set forth in this contract are carried forward to any subcontracts. Contractor and its subcontractors agree not to release, divulge, publish, transfer, sell or otherwise make known to unauthorized persons personal information without the express written consent of DOH or as provided by law.

If, at any time during the progress of the work, DOH determines in its sole judgment that any subcontractor is incompetent or undesirable, DOH shall notify the Contractor, and the Contractor shall take immediate steps to terminate the subcontractor's involvement in the work.

The rejection or approval by DOH of any subcontractor or the termination of a subcontractor shall not relieve the Contractor of any of its responsibilities under the contract, nor be the basis for additional charges to DOH.

DOH has no contractual obligations to any subcontractor or vendor under contract to the Contractor. The Contractor is fully responsible for all contractual obligations, financial or otherwise, to their subcontractors.

- 34. **SURVIVABILITY** The terms and conditions contained in this contract which by their sense and context, are intended to survive the completion, cancellation, termination, or expiration of the contract shall survive,
- 35. SUSPENSION OF PERFORMANCE AND RESUMPTION OF PERFORMANCE In the event contract funding from State, Federal, or other sources is withdrawn, reduced, or limited in any way after the effective date of this contract and prior to normal completion, DOH may give notice to Contractor to suspend performance as an alternative to termination. DOH may elect to give written notice to Contractor to suspend performance when DOH determines that there is a reasonable likelihood that the funding insufficiency may be resolved in a timeframe that would allow performance to be resumed prior to the end date of this contract. Notice may include notice by facsimile or email to Contractor's representative. Contractor shall suspend performance on the date stated in the written notice to suspend. During the period of suspension of performance each party may inform the other of any conditions that may reasonably affect the potential for resumption of performance.

When DOH determines that the funding insufficiency is resolved, DOH may give Contractor written notice to resume performance and a proposed date to resume performance. Upon receipt

of written notice to resume performance, Contractor will give written notice to DOH as to whether it can resume performance, and, if so, the date upon which it agrees to resume performance. If Contractor gives notice to DOH that it cannot resume performance, the parties agree that the contract will be terminated retroactive to the original date of termination. If the date Contractor gives notice it can resume performance is not acceptable to DOH, the parties agree to discuss an alternative acceptable date. If an alternative date is not acceptable to DOH, the parties agree that the contract will be terminated retroactive to the original date of termination.

- 36. **TAXES** All payments accrued on account of payroll taxes, unemployment contributions, any other taxes, insurance or other expenses for the Contractor or its staff shall be the sole responsibility of the Contractor.
- 37. **TERMINATION FOR CONVENIENCE** Except as otherwise provided in this contract, the Contracting Officer may, by TEN (10) calendar days written notice, beginning on the second day after the mailing, terminate this contract in whole or in part when it is in the best interests of DOH.

If this contract is so terminated, DOH shall be liable only for payment in accordance with the terms of this contract for services rendered prior to the effective date of termination.

- 38. **TERMINATION FOR DEFAULT** In the event DOH determines the contractor has failed to comply with the conditions of this contract in a timely manner, DOH has the right to suspend or terminate this contract. Further, DOH may terminate this contract for default, in whole or in part, if DOH has a reasonable basis to believe that the contractor has:
 - A. Failed to meet or maintain any requirement for contracting with DOH;
 - B. Failed to ensure the health or safety of any client for whom services are being provided under this contract;
 - C. Failed to perform under, or otherwise breached, any term or condition of this contract; and/or
 - D. Violated any applicable law or regulation.

Before suspending or terminating the contract, DOH shall notify the Contractor in writing of the need to take corrective action. If corrective action is not taken within fourteen (14) days, the contract may be terminated or suspended. In the event of termination or suspension, the Contractor shall be liable for damages as authorized by law including, but not limited to, any cost difference between the original contract and the replacement or cover contract and all administrative costs directly related to the replacement contract, e.g., cost of the competitive bidding, mailing, advertising and staff time. DOH reserves the right to suspend all or part of the contract, withhold further payments, or prohibit the Contractor from incurring additional obligations of funds during investigation of the alleged compliance breach and pending corrective action by the Contractor or a decision by DOH to terminate the contract. A termination shall be deemed to be a "termination for convenience" if it is determined that the Contractor: (1) was not in default; or (2) failure to perform was outside of his or her control, fault or negligence. The rights and remedies of DOH provided in this contract are not exclusive and are in addition to any other rights and remedies provided by law.

39. **TERMINATION PROCEDURE** – Upon termination of this contract DOH may require the Contractor to deliver to DOH any property specifically produced or acquired for the performance of such part of this contract as has been terminated. The provisions of the Treatment of Assets clause shall apply in such property transfer.

DOH shall pay to the Contractor the agreed upon price, if separately stated, for completed work and services accepted by DOH. In addition DOH shall pay the amount agreed upon by the Contractor and the Contracting Officer for (a) completed work and services for which no separate price is stated, (b) partially completed work and services, (c) other property or services which are accepted by DOH, and (d) the protection and preservation of the property. If the termination is for default, the Contracting Officer shall determine the extent of the liability of DOH. Failure to agree with such determination shall be a dispute within the meaning of the Disputes clause of this contract.

DOH may withhold from any amounts due the Contractor for such completed work or services such sum as the Contracting Officer determines to be necessary to protect DOH against potential loss or liability.

The rights and remedies of DOH provided in this section shall not be exclusive and are in addition to any other rights and remedies provided by law or under this contract.

After receipt of a notice of termination, and except as otherwise directed by the Contracting Officer, the Contractor shall:

- Stop work under the contract on the date and to the extent specified in the notice;
- Place no further orders or subcontracts for materials, services, facilities except as necessary to complete such portion of the work not terminated;
- Assign to DOH, to the extent directed by the Contracting Officer, all of the rights, titles, and
 interest of the Contractor under the orders and subcontracts in which case DOH has the right,
 at its discretion, to settle or pay any or all claims arising out of the termination of such orders
 and subcontracts.
- Settle all outstanding liabilities and all claims arising out of orders or subcontracts, with the approval or ratification of the Contracting Officer to the extent he/she may require, which approval or ratification shall be final for all the purposes of this clause;
- Transfer title to DOH and deliver, as directed by the Contracting Officer, any property which, if the contract had been completed, would have been required to be furnished to DOH;
- Complete performance of such part of the work not terminated by the Contracting Officer; and,
- Take such action as may be necessary, or as the Contracting Officer may direct, for the protection and preservation of the property related to this contract which is in the possession of the Contractor and in which DOH has or may acquire an interest.
- 40. **WAIVER OF DEFAULT** Waiver of any default or breach shall not be deemed to be a waiver of any subsequent default or breach. Any waiver shall not be construed to be a modification of the terms of this contract unless stated to be such in writing and signed by authorized representative of DOH.